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ACG 2022 10 3 ACG
2023
2023 31

ACG
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IFRS

IFRS
IFRS
2023 12 31

IFRS

2023 12 31
FVTPL IFRS IFRS

IFRS 9

2023

2023 12 31
A-1 133,217
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9.5

NAV

2023 12 31 100%

IFRS 13
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31
- - 7,293,875 7,293,875
- - 7,293,875 7,293,875
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 +-
( H-

7,293,875
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9.
9.5
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
2023
6,814,213
479,662
7,293,875
479,662
2022 9 16 2023 12 31
10.
2023 2024
CICAV-SIF
6,333,247
1,011,329

2024 12 2024
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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as af 37 Devewber 2023
Ir U8 Dherlfaars Moles 2023
Asscis
Cash and cash equivalenis 4 133217
Finanicial assets an fair value theough profit or loss 5 7201875
Totul asseis TAITIND
Liabilities
Redenption payable T.158 082
Onher payables & GRI
Tatul liabilitics 74217002
Total cquity and liabilitics 7427002

Accompanyving notes are an indogrol part of the financiol Staiomeints.

fv
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Sfor the period from 16 Neptember 2022 {Date of commencenernt of aperafions) e 31 December 2023

For the period from
16 September 2022
(Date of commencement
al upuhillulu} o
In LY Dlfars Note 31 Deeember 2023
Income
Interest income 21
Distribatson incomne B9.594
Mt reahiscid gains on (mancial asscts at fair value through
profit o loss 24213
Poet unrealised guins on (inancinl assets at fair value
through pealit or hoss 479 662
Wt foreign exchange losses on cash and eash equivalents {952}
Totul income 501,534
Expenses
Management fees B 63810
Audit fees 44375
Chrganisabion expenses g 174
Legal fees 11935
Professwmal lees 4264
Bank charges 1.893
Total expenses 234456
Increase in nel axsets atiribuiable to unitholders ASRAR2

Accowmpanyvtng potes are an indegrod part of the financioel stalemonts

7
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement af Changes in Equity
Sor the period from 16 September 2022 {Date of comimencenent of operations) fe 31 December 2023

Shuare Retained
Ir U8 Dhallara capital ui:l‘lluﬂl Tuolal
Halance at the beginning of the period . -
lssuance of redecmable units T A DD - 7 Ab(sd, I
Kedemption of redeemable units LR UETEY (35K, 082) {T35H.082)
Increass i net assets altnbutable 1o unitholders 358.042 158,082
Balance at the end of the perlsd - - -

Accompanying rotes are an infegral parr of the financial stafemenis,

L
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Statement of Cash Flows
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Sor the period from 16 September 2022 (ate of commencement of operations) to 3 December 2023

I LN Dhailars

Faor the period from
16 September 2022

{Date of commencement

of aperations) o
31 December 2023

Cash fMlows from operating activities
Inerease in net asscts attribaiahle 1w unithoblders
Adiistnenis for:

Imterest ineome

Met realised gmns on lnancial assets at far value through
profit or loss

Met unrealised gains on fimancial assets ol Tair volue through
profit or loss

Met forewgn exchange losses on cash and cash equivalenis

[nerease i atlier puvables
Purchnse of Nnancial assets at fair valie |]uuu|r_|: |1:-|r|!-|.l or Do

Cush wsed in operations

Interest received

MNet eash used in operating activithes

Cish flows from Muancing activities
Proceeds from issuance of redecmiable unais

Net eash from financing activities

MNet increase in cash amd cosh eqquivalents

Corxh umal cash equivalents ot the beginning of the period
Exchunge losses on cush and cosh exqpuivalents

Cash amid cash equivalents at the end of the period

Accompanying rofes are an integral part of the financial staremenis.

g
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period from 16 Seprember 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) te 31 December 2023

I.  General information

Jewel Box Fumd {the “Fund™) 15 on open-ended umt trust estableshed by the Trust Deed and 15 registered as an exempled
trusd mader the Trust Act (Revised) of the Cavman 1slands on 18 March 2022, The Fund lkas been established for a finite
period and wall terminate 149 years afler is establishment unless termimated earlier. The Fund was registered wnder
Sechon 431 of the Mutoal Funds Act (2021 Bevision) of the Coyman Islands on | e 2022 with registration number
19762 14 ol commenced operations on 16 September 2022

Ihie Fuid has been structuied as an investment fund 1o allow its uidtholders to collectively invest i sccordanee with the
investniend objective ond strategics. The mvesiment objective of the Fund 15 10 pursue stabke retums i mid-long torm,
inaintaiing low correlation with taditssienl asset elasses, by diversilied investments into allernative assets in the G of
fuund of fumds, In order 1o achieve the mvestment objective, the Tnvestment Monager will invest the assets of the Pund
promanily i underlyimg funds of povate mnrket o alicrmative strafcgics

The spvestment activatees of the Pund are managed by TORANOTEC Asset Monagemem [ad. (the “Investmen
Manager™), and the sdministrotion of the Fund 1= delegnted to Apex Fund Services (Cayman} Lid, (the “ Administrator™).

1 Muterinl secounting policies
The maternal accountmg polses appled m the preparation of these inoncial stalemenis are sel oul below,
2.1 Basis of preparation

The finaneinl statememts of the Fund have been prepared i accordance with IFRS Aceounting Standards (“1FRS™) ansd
the sequsrenicits of the Trist Deed. IFRS Accounting Standards comprise the following sibionitative lileratine:

* [FRS Accounting Stondards

* AR Sundards

& Interpretations developed by the TFRS Interpretations Comunittee (TFRIC® Iterpretations) of its predecessor bady, the
Standmg [nterpretations Committes (SIC* Interpretotinns)

The financial statements have been prepared om the histoncal cost basis, except for linnncial mstruments ol fur value
throargh prolfit or loss, wlach are measured at their fair vahie.

The preparation of linancial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cenain critical acoounbing estimales.
It i3 rexpuires the Tristes 1o exarcise s pidpeient in the process ol applving tie Fuind's ageounting palicies. The nfeas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, of arcas where assumgrions mnd cstimates are signilicant 1o the
limancial statements, wre disclosed m Note 3,

The Investment Mannger commuts (4 cover all or a portion of the Fund's operating costs, as mny be necessury, b ensure
the eomtinuity of the Fund in the next twelve months afier the penad ended 31 December 2023, The Investment Manager
havs s resmom 1o believe that the Fund will nod comtmue as o goang concern o the vear shead and has sdopted the going
concern basis m preparing the linancial statements. The Invesment Manager has established that there 15 no material
uncertamty thnt casts doubt on the ability of the Fupd 10 continee a5 a2 gomg concem

1.2 New standands, amendments and interpretations

) Sterederrels and amendments to existing standards effective 16 Seprember 2022
* Dhsclosure of Accounting Polices = Amendments to [AS | and [FRS Pracuce Sttement 2 deffective 1 Jonuory 2023)

The Fund has asdopied the above standard and mterpretation and the amendmen did pot hove o matenal effect on the
fimancial statcmenis of the Fund bui 11 has mnpecied the sccouniing policy information disclosed in the fmancial

siptements. The Trustee has reviewed the nmendments te the necounting poliey and the miormation has been disclosed i
lime wath mmendiments.

m
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period from 16 Seprember 2022 (Date of commencensent of aperations) te 31 December 2023

2. Muterial sccounting policies (continued)
2.2 New stundands, amendments and interpretations (continued)

it Krerorelerredy, awremdments and imf.;-q:lu'\miwr.r it are ot el :_'llﬁ-q'rr'w and e mod been 1.'41n'|.'.:.n.ﬁ1|ﬂn; By e Fruud
A number ol new siandords, amendments o slandards and  olerpretations are effecove for perosds begmmimg
afber 16 Sepiember 2022, pand have not been early adopied in preparing these financial siatemenis

o Classilsention of Latubives a5 Carment or Nog=curren? « Amendments i LAS 1 {elTective | Janaory 20024)

o Nom-current liabilites with Covenants - Amendments o 1AS | {ellective | Janunary 2024)

& [FR5 |8 Presemtation and Dhisclosure in Financeal Statements {effective 1 January 2027)

Mone of the above new standards, amerdments to stamdards and inlerpretations are expecied to have a material efTect on
the Ninaicu] stiterents of the Fuid, The above standosds and amembmeits will be adopied by the Find when applicable
and effeetive

L3} Swrwctured entities

A stractured entity is an entity thot has been designed so that voting er similar nights are not the dominam factor in
decading who controls the entity, such as when any veding nights relate o adoimistrative tosks oply and the relevant
activities ane directed by means of contractual armngements. A structured enfity often has some or all of the following
features or aitnbutes: (a) restncted activitics, (b o parrow and wiell-defined obgective, such as o provide wvestment
opportumities for investors by passing on nsks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured enbity to mmvestors,
(e} maufTecient expuity to permt the stnsctared entity 10 Ninance 18 activites without subsadinated Gnancial support and
() financing in the fom of multiple contracieally linked instruments 1o investors that create concentrations of credi or
wiher risks (iranches)

Thee Fumil eonsiders all of its investments in odher Tunds (“Tovestee Funds™) to be investments o unconsolsdoted stoctured
entities. The Fumad invests in Investes Funds whose objectives mnge from schicving medinm 1o long term cupital growih,
Thie Inivestee Fudwds are monaged by unrelsted ssset managers aid ojply vanows ivestirent stiategies to aeeoanplsh ther
respective mvestment objectives, The Investes Funds finanee thewr operatins by wssuing hmitesd partnershap iterests or
redecmable units which are puttable at the holder™s opion and entitles the holder b a proportional stake i the respective
fund s net assets. The Fund holds hmied parinership imterests or redeemable units in each of iis Invesiee Funds

The chamge in farr value of each Investes Fund s incloded i the Stfement of Comprehensive Income m “net realised
gains on (inancial assets at fair value through profit o bess” or “net unrealised gaims on financial assets at fair value through
prafit of boss”

14 Foreign corrency translstion
) Funciional and presentation cirrency
The Fund's subscoptaons and redemptions of redeemabbe partecaipoting vants are denomanpted m Uoned States Dol lar
("US Dollar™ or “USS7). The performance of the Fund is measured and reported to invesiors i US Dollar. Management
considers the LS Dollar ns the currency that most fath ully represents the econmmie elfects of the underhying transactions,
events amd conditions. The Nnancial statenents ane presented in U5 Dollar, whieh 5 the Fund's Functonal and
presenlation currency
h Transections and balmnces
Foreign curvency transacions are ranslated into the functional cumency usmg the exchange rates prevailing ai the dates
of the transactions. Forcign currency assets and linbilities are translated imto the functional cummency using the exchange

mmle prl,".'nlling ol Ihn: Salement |.1!'|: inurll.:iul plﬂhllitlﬂ. 1.|nl|.- ]"1.~n.'i|_.',|1 cx:lu:lngl.- uns mivill Divsses urixing rnlqn h'nn:slnliull mre
inchuded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

1
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period from 16 Seprember 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) te 31 December 2023

2 Material accounting palicies (continued)
24 Foreign currency trunslation (continued)
thi Transactiony and balorces foanfinued)

Foreign exchange gains ol losses relating io cash and cash equivalenis are presenicd an the Siatement of
Comprehensive Income within *net Toreign exchange gnins or losses on cash and cash equivalents’.

Foreign exchonge gains or losses relnting 1o the finoncml assets ond habilies cameed at fair value through profit or loss
are paesented in e Sttement of Comprehensive Income within ‘net realised gains on Nnancial assets at Buor value
through profit or loss’ or *net unrealised gams on fnoncial assets at fr value throogh profit or loss®

1.5  Financial instraments
151 Classification

In secordmee with [FRS 9 Fmancial Instroments, fimonenl assets and lnbalities are clasaliod mio the following
NCASUEILERT CaleUaTics:

# Those o be mensured subsequently at famr value through other comprehensive meome (FVOCT), ond f@ir value
throagh profit or loss (FVTFL).
® Theoss 1o e mensured al omornised gost

e classification of the cateponies depensds on the Fumd's busaness mesdel for masaging fnancial sssets and hadsilaties,
amd the comractual cash Mow characteristics of the Mwancial assets and Mnancial labiliges.

The Fund’s investment m fimancial assets and habilities is classificd at FYTPL. None of the Fund's financial asscts and
linbilities nre Beld st FVOCT a8 peniod end.

Finureial axvets ore measured af foir value through profit or loss §FVIPE) if:

® lis contracneal terms do not give rse to cash fows on specified dates that age solely payments of principal and interest
(SPF1 e the principal amount outstanding: or

# 1 1= oot held within a busmess maodel whose obgective 15 either to callect contractual cosh Mows, ar 1o both collect
contraciual cash fows amd sell; or

® A0 il recogmition, 8 is revocably designated as measured a1 FVITPL when doang so elimmies or sigmificantly
reduces 0 measurement or recognifion mconsistency that would otherwise anse from measuring assels or habilifies
or recogmising the goms and losses on them on shiTerent bases,

e Fund clussifies us imvestment in [ovestee Funds sl FYTPL

Finaweial assets measured af amortived cost

A fmancial asset = mensured at amortised cost 0§ ot s hebd withm o busmess model whose objective is o hold fnancial
assets m order b0 eollect contractual cash Aows and s contractsal tenms give nse on specificd dates to cash Mows that
aie solely pavments of prncipal and miteredt on the prucipal amount oilstanding. Ve Fid selisdes o this category
cash and cash equivalents.

Finarcial Wabilites measwred af amortised cost

This category includes all financial lisbilitics, other than those measured ot fair value through profit or bess. The Fund
inclhwles in ths category accounts payable and acerued expenses
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period from 16 Seprember 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) te 31 December 2023

2 Material accounting palicies (continued)
1.5  Financial instraments {continued )
152 Recognition, derecopnition and measurement

Regilar purchases and sales of invesiments are recogrnised on ihe trsle-date. the date on which the Fund commiis io
purchase or sell the vestment. Finaneciol ossets at fair vale throwgh profit or loss are mitally recognsed al Gair value.
Iransaction costs ane expensed as incamed i the Saenent of Comprelicisive [ncoime,

Fipascial aseets are derecogmsed when the rights w reeeive cash lows fraan the Nosscaal assets have expared o have
teen translemed and the Fand has irmnsterred substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership

Kubsequent to mitinl recognition, all finencin] asseis at fair value through profit or loss are measured al fair value. Gaims
and losses ansusg from changes in the fur value of the *fomocnl assets ot fur value theough profin or loss” category are
presended o the Stnfement of Comprehensive Income within the ‘net realised and unrealised pains i fair value on
financial assets at far value through profie o loss™ o the peood inowhech they anse

153 Falr value measurement principles

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price ihat wouold be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o oansfer a liability in an osderly
trunsaction between markel participants o e mensarement date wder current market conditions

Finangial assets pndd finnnewal hobiities a8 fair valug through profit or loss are reeorded m the Statement of mancial
Positio at fair value. ALl transaction costs for such istnimeits are recoginised discetly in profit of las of the Statcmeit
of Comprehensive Ingome,

e fiwir value of financiall assets and labilities traded i active markets are based on quoted morker prices ot the close
ol

tradeng om the reporting date. The Fumd wiilises ihe lasi waded market price for both fimancial assels ol fooncial
linkilities where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In cirewmstaces where the last traded price is ot
within the bad-ask sprend. monzgement will determng the point withm the brd-osk spread that i most representative of
[aar value,

The fir valse of financial assets and linbalities that are not traded in an setrve market 15 determined using valuation
techmgues, The Fund uses oo vaniety of methods and mokes ssumptons it are based on macket conditions existing at
cach reporting date. Waluation technigues used melude the wse of comparuble recent ondinary trumsactions between
markel paricipants, reference 1o other instruments that are substantndly the same and other vahation technigues
commonly used by markel participants making the maximum use of marked wpots and relying os liile as possible on
enlily-specilic imputs

The Investment Manager may, at is diseretion, permit any stder method of valuateon 1o be wsed of they conseler that
such method of valuation better reflects far value and is in aceordance with sound accoanting pracice.

154 Transfers between leveb of the fair value hicrarchy

There were no tramsfers between the levels of the fnr value licrarchy durmg the penod ended 31 December 2023

13

105/210



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period fram 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of aperaiions) te 31 December 2023

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
L6 Expected credit losses an financisl assets mensured at amaortised cost

Al each reporting date, the Fund shall memsure the loss allowance on linancial assets measured sl amortised cost ol
an amount equal o the hfetime expected credit losses al the credn sk has mereased sigmificamly since initial
seengnition. IF, ai ihe reporting date, the credit visk has not mereased signi Geanily since initial recognition, ihe Fund
shall measure the loss allowance al an smoum! equol o 12-month expected credit bosses. Significant Onancial
diffseultics of the countenpany. probability that the counterpamy will emer banknaptey or fnancial reodganisation, and
defalt in payvmients are all considered indicators that amounts may be creds impaired, 11 the credit nisk mereases 1o
e poust that it s considered w ke credit wguired, interest wreome will be caleulated based on the pet canrying
amount {afier deduction of the boss allowance). A significant increase in eredit risk is defined by management as any
contractunl payment which s more than 30 doys past due. Any contrsciunl poyment which is more tean 90 davs past
e 15 considered credil impaired

L7 Cash and cash cquivalenis

Crsh and ensh cquivalents mebide depesats hebd o1 enll with banks and ather short-term mvestments i an sctive marke!
with opginal matrities of three montlis o bess,

LE  Accrued expenses

Acciued expenses are recognised initially at fasr value and subsequently stated a1 amartised cost using ihe effeciive
interest methaod

2.9 Redeemabls interest in the Fund

The Fund issues one class of redeemable umits, which are redeemable al the wmitholder's option. Such shares are
classified as equity. Redeemable mais can be redeemed at any Redemption Diay s the Trustee may determine fior eash
eqqual i a proporiionaie share of the Fund's net assel value.

Il redeemable unis me camried ol amomsed ost which comegponds to e redemplion mnount il i pavable ol the
Statement of Financial Positon date i the unitholder exercises the nght w redeem shares. Redeeneable units ane issued
and redeemed at the wniliolder’s opticen at prives based on the Fund's net asset valoe per shore o the e of issue or
redemption. The Fund's net asset value per share is ealeulated by dividing the net nssels atiribugable to the unitholders
of each clnss of redeemable umts with the totol number of outstundmg redecinable umits for ench respective class In
aceordance with the provisions of the Fund's regulations, imvestment positions are valued based on the Inst traded market
price for the purpose of determmng e net meet value per share for subscrgdions and redemplions

1 Distribution income

[hstnbwiiion income from lnvestes Funds 15 recogmsed moprelil or hoss of the Statement of Comprelensive Ingome o
the distribution date which is the date when the Fund's right 1o receive payment is established.

L1l Taxation

The Fund 15 not subgect to any mcome, withholding or capital gnins tnses i the Coyman [slands. The Fund is registered
as i exeiiipled tnet pirsieant o seetion 74 of the Trust Act (Revaged) of the Coyinan Islasads. The Fuid has applicd for
a tax exempion eertificate from the Financial Seeretary of the Cayman lslands, which, if granted, wall provade that, for
a pertod of up o 30 veass from the date of the ereation of the Fund, no low that i thereafier enacted m the Cavimun
Islands imposang any tax or duty 1o be levied on meome or on capial assets, gams, or apprecialion o any tax m the
matire of estate duty o inhernitange ax will apply 10 any property comprised in the Fund, o o any meoms amsing amwier
the: Fund or to the Trsstee or 1o the unitholders in respect of any such property or mcome.

4
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period fram 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of aperaiions) te 31 December 2023

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
211 Taxation {continuel)

Unitholders wall not be subject 1o any income, withkolding or capital gains taxes in the Coyman ldands, wath respect o
the wts owned by them aned distnibutions receved on such units, ner will they be subject (o any estale or mbentance
fanes in the Cayman [slands,

It is possalabe that certain dividends, mtenest aivd ot incoitie received by e Fuisd om sources within certam couiitfies
will be subject o withholding txes mpesed by such countries, In addivon, the Fund may also be subject o capital
wans laxes of ollier taxes m soane of the countries where i parchases and sells secunities or otherwise conducts business,
It is impossible 1o predict m advance the mte of tax that will be paid sipce the smount of the assets of the Fund 1w be
mviesied in various countrcs 15 uncerinin.

A Use of accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Dnancual statements in conformuty with IFRS requires the Trastee to make judgements, estimates
and wesmptisns that sfect the applicanon of secounting policres awd the reported smounts ol sssets, labilines, meome
and expenses. Estimates and wderlyving sssumiptions are reviewed o an ongoing basis, Revisions 1o accounting
estimules ore recogmised m the penod mowhich the estimute 15 revised and ooy Qe penods affected,

Exnmaies arvd assumpions

Manmngement makes estimsies and assumptions concermmg the fisre. The resuliing sccounting estmaies will, by
chefimatio, seldom equal the related actial resiilts. The estimates and sssunptions Ot have a sigaificait risk of camsing
a mateninl adjustment to the camying amounts of mssets ond habihties are outlined below,

Fair value u__famu-:rnrm:s dwr n.r.fu.-rlfr.m.a’s

e fair walue of Imvestiments i Investee Funds thid sre nod quoted inoan sctive markel s determined by the nel nssel
vahee issucd by the administrators of the Investee Funds, os the nel assel value represents the price at which the Fund
cin fedeen Hs investoents mosisch Investée Fuibds at e end of reportimg period. The Investment Mamager conssders
ithe abwowe valuation approach as the best estimate of the fair value of the Invesice Funes.

If the net asset value of the Invesice Fands is pol available or the Investment Manager conssders that such net asset volue
15 not reflective of the fuir value, the Tovestment Monnger mny exercise judgment and diseretion to deteronne the fur
valee of the Invesiee Fonds, The Fund may determine the value of lwvestee Funds using iis own models, which are
wsually based on valuation methods and techmiques generally recogmisod as standard within the mdustry,

Muoslels use observable data, to the extent pacheable. However, arens such as credit rsk (boths own agsl counterparty ),
vaslatilities and comelations require management o moke estimates. Changes i assumplions ahout these factors could
allect the peportes Gur valoe of nanoal imsimmemts, The sensitvity o unobservible it 15 based on the expectation
of reasonable possible shifts in these mgats, laking inte consideration historical volatility and estimations of [utre
mnarkel nuwements.

The determination of what constilites "observable” requires signilftcant judgement by the Fund, The Funid considers
obscrvable datn to be market dota that s readily available, regularly distribwted or upsdated, reliable ond verifinble, not
propnctary, and provided by independeiil sources that are sctively involved i the relevant market

15
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4, Cash and cash equivalents

for 18 Dinflars i3
Irading sccounds 133,217
133,217

5. Fimancisl sssets ot fair value through profit or loss

T LIN Dodiars 2023
Investee Funds 7.293,875
1203475

6. Oiher payables

T 175 Dodines 013
Munagement e payable 13,149
Organisation cxpenscs payable o0
Auwdit fee poyable 44175
Legal lees payable 11,156

69010

7. Metasscts attributable to unitholders

Tl Fund was establishesd as an open-ended unt trost with an mteal sum of USS 18 whch was receved by the Trustee apd
will be leld by the Trustee on hehall of the Fund

Thee Trustee may st any time and from me o tme, designate a cliss of shares with such rights, preferences amd limitntions
as the Trustee, i consuliation with the Management Company and the Investment Manager, may determine. Redeemahle
wmits may be issued on o subscriprion day (e the lirst business day in each of January, Apnil, July and October in cach year
andlor such other days as the Managenent Company. in consuliaton with the Trustee and the Investment Manager may
determine) o dilToront clusses by the Munagement Comgpany on behall of the Trusiee in secordance with the Trust Deed,
which are denominated m either US Dollar or Japanese Yen (CJMY ) The offenng price for USD-class units: Class 1-USI,
Cluas B-UISD pmd Class P-USD unis s USS10 per unt ansd JPY -closs unis: Closs 1-FPY and Class R-17Y 05 JPY 1AM per
LA

Tl rmurmm imten] mvestment per wnitholder m Class | umits or Closs B ounits s LSS 1000000 (or curmeney equivalent) and
for Ulass P-LISLY uanits a5 S5 0000, 000 or sueh lesser amount as the Trusiee may generally or m any paricular case determine,
provaded thot such lesser amount is consastent with the Fond bewng repistered onder section 4030 of the Mutoal Fumds Act
as may be amended from time to iime. The nminimen additional subsenipiion amount i respect of Class 1 Units or Class R
Units 15 LSS 10,0660 {or curmeney equevalenthansd for Class P-U'S0 units 15 LI5S 10040, 000

For the period from 16 September 2022 {ate of commencement of operations) o 31 December 2023, only Class P-LISE
siares have been maued.

I
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T Net assets attributable to unithellers (continued )

Ihe analyses of movements i the member of redeemable umits ond nel pssets attnbutable to unithobders duning the
period 15 as follows:

Far the period from
16 Sepiember 20022

(Date of commencement

of aperatiens) ta

Iir miits 31 December 2023
Tsswed and Tully paid number of shares

Balimee ot begmmmg of the penod -

Issnance of redeemable units TiH (i

Redemption of redeemable umis { T, 0N

Balance at the end of the penod -

Far the period from

16 September 2022

{Date of commencement
ol aperations) to
B IS Dhollerrn 31 December 2023

lsswed and Tally paild shares

Ralanee an begimnmimng of the period -
Issumnge of redeemable units 7,000 (WK
Redempeiion of redeenuable unils (7,338, 082)
Incrense i net mssels attributable 1o anitelders 358,082
Balanece an the ewd of the penusl -

Redeemable wnits moy be redeemed on the redempiion date (e the first business doy i each of Jawsary, Apnl, July
witd Oletober i cach vear aisdior such othier dovs ax the Trustee mav determane) af the nel asset value per share apoi
recerving 95 days” notice proor (o valuation date written nofice from a unithobder, except for Class P-UST anns, wiich
is subjeet o a 12 month bck-ug period frem e ddate of issue

I redempiion reguests Tor the redemplion of wmits in ageregate of moie than 25% of the et assel value o the Fumsd, ihe
Munagement Company may redice those redemption requeests rateably aned pro rala amongst all unitholders seeking pe
redecm wids on the redemplion date and to carmy oul only sufTickent redemptions which, in ageregate, amount to the
redempiion threshold, Redemption requests which ore nat satisfied in fall will be camied forward to the next edemplan
date bat will not have any prionty over other redemption requesis.

7
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H. Related parties

Parties are considered to be relnted 1f one porty has the abality to control the other party or exercise significand miluence
wwver the other pany in making [maneial or operatwaal decsions.

Relationships

Tnvestment Manager TORAROTEC Assct Management Lid.
Management Company: Emerging Assct Management Lid.
Trustes: Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Lid

Related party transactions and balances
Mamagement foe

The Fund has appointed TORANOTEC Assel Management Lid. as the Invesiment Manager o provide myestment
mnagemen| sl sdvisory services o the Fund. Pursuant 1o the mvestoen) pnnagemen) mereement, the Investment
Manager will receive a management fee equal 1o one quanier of 1.0% per quarter of the wet asset value of Class [
Unats, one quarter of 1.0% per quarter of the net asset valug of Class B Units and vawe quarter of 00.7% per quarter of
the met asset value of Class P-USE Units. The management fee will be pavable quanterly in amenrs.

Munagement fees mevmed for the penod amounted 1o US563, 510 and the balance payvable m 31 December 2023
amaoaited to LISS13 14,

Trisies few
The Tmstee 1s entitled to recerve, ol of the assets of the Fund, a fee equal to the grenter of (1) 0.02% of the Net Asset

Vahee per annum wond (i) LSS 15000 per anmum, Foe the pericd from 16 September 2022 {Date of commencement of
operations) o 31 December 2023, Trustee fees wene meurred by the Investment Manager on behalf of the Fund.

Mermagerment Cwmpny fee
The Management Company is entstled to recesve, out of the assets of the Fund, o fee of LSS35.000 per annum. For
the penod from 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) 1o 31 December 2023, Management
Company fees were iscurred by the Investment Manager on behal§ of the Fund,

% Financial risk management

Effective msk muanagement s ntegral to the Fund s objective of consastently addimg value to unithalders, The focus
of risk monagement is on identifying., assessing, managing, and monitoring risk.

The Fund's sctivities expose il to @ vapely of lnomcal risks: markel nsk (mclading price nsk, currency nsk and
interest rafe risk ), credit risk o lguichity risk.

2.1 Market risk
Market nisk s the risk that changes i the market prices will affect the Fund's income or the value of s holdings of

finoncial instruments, The objeetive of market nsk manogement 15 to monage sl control morket nsk exposures within
accepable parameters, while optimising the retum.

18
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9. Financial risk management fcontinacd)
9.1 Murket risk (vantinued)
9.0 Price risk

Frice msk 15 ihe msk thai the value of a Hoancial mstrument Meciuaies as a resull of changes in marked praces of
mstruments held whether caused by factors specific to the underlving mvestments of the Fund, i85 1ssuer or all factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market,

T Fuial 15 exposed v price msk sn mvestments held o Invessee Funds which presents o nisk of bess ol capiial. The
Investment Manager moderates this pisk through diversification and selection of invesiments by wyvesting in
unsderlving fumds which are Bsted or atherwise mlended a be realised

The Fund's investment in Invesiee Funds as disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements are subject 1o price nisk.

Assuming that all edher vanoables remain constant, u reasonably possable weakening i the mdividual market prices of
105wt 31 December 2023, would result in o decrense m the net nssels attnbadable 1w mmitholders of TIS372490 188,
which represents W 8% of the Fund’s net assets before redemptaon.

A strengthening of ndividual market prces woubd have an equal but opposite effect.

AR December 2023, the exposure 1o mvestments  Iavestee Funds at for value greater than 1% of the nel assets
before redemption by strategy emploved and exposure 1o vanous geogrphical regions is disclosed in the following

tahle.
e of net axscts
Giengraphicnl b fare
Jin 105 Drodlars Stratepy region Fair value reldemption
31 December 2023
Arixa Enhanced Income Fund Real estnie United States
Offshore Feoder debt Dumd of America 2,209,625 10.403%
GEA Coral Portfolio 5.C A SICAV.
SIF - Coral Student Pornfolis Fund of funds Lusembisurg 2 225 (49 024%
Montrews Healtheare Fund 1.d Private L'L[II.iI?-‘ lmwd  Ulnpied K:in:.:,rlmn 1,000,329 13, 75%
Prism Income Fumd Private debt liml Muouritins 1.E4T.8T2 25.11%
1293875 P0.13%

911 Currency risk

Currency nisk, asdefined in IFES T, arises as the vahee of Quire tramnsactons, recopgmised mongtary wsets wnd maneliry
lishilities denominated in other currencics Muectuate due 1o changes in foreign exchange rates. IFRS 7 considers the
foreign exchange exposure relating 10 non-moneinry assels and labilivies o be a component of market price risk pnd
mt foreign commency riske However, the Invesiment Manger monitors the exposure on all foseign cumency
denomimated assels and lnbilines

When the Investment Manager formulates a view on the future divection of foreign exchonge rates and the potential
impact on the Fund, the Investment Manager factors that inte their investment portfolio allocation decisions, While
the Fund has direct exposure io fereign exclange mie changes on the price of non-US Dollar denominated securities,
it may also be indwectly affected by the impact of forcign exchonge rabe changes on the camings of certain companics
m whach the Fund mvests, even of those compames” secunbies are denomunated i USS The Investiment Manager
regularly monibors the Fund s monetary and non-moenctary foreign exchange cxposure

A 31 [recember 2023, the Fumd held cosh and cash equivalents amouming w L5331 denonumated in g curmency
wther than the U5 Daollar.

Assnmang that all eilier varishles renmin copstant, a 5% weakening of e 175 Dollar against foreign cumencies at the
reperting date, would have decreased net assets attnbutable to unitholders by USS17,
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9. Financial risk management (eontinued)
2.1 Market risk (continued)
9.1.3  Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk = the nsk that the fur value or fotere cash ows of o (nancin] mstroment will fectunte as a result of
changes in inlefest rales

No sensitivity of the Pud's profi or lees for the parnsd hss been presented as ihe Fund did pot held any mvestnents
that are affected by changes in iierest rates.

The Fund s subpected o limited exposure to for value cash Dow and miterest mie sk due 1o Mectuntons i provakng
lewels of market interest mies

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents consists of interest-beanng bank deposits. As these deposits are invested in
short-term morket mterest rates aceounts, the Iovestment Monnger considers the movement in mierest mtes will not
have significant cash fow impact on the pet assets atmbutable o unithobklers at 31 December 2023 and accordingly,
have nol presenicd o sensitivity analysas

9.2 Liquidity risk

Ligquidaty risk is the nsk that the Fund may not be able 1o generate suflicient cash resources to seitle s obligations in
full o they fall due or can only dooso on enms that are mntenally disadvantageous. The Fuand 15 exposad w quarierly
cash redemptions of redeemable units.

Thee Furd may periaically invest in unlisied mvesiee funds that are not traded inoan acbive market. As a resuli, the
Fundl may not be abkle to quickly liquidate its investments i these istnoments ot an amsount close o therr fir value o
et its linguliny veuiremcits of be able o respodid 1o specific events sucl as deterioration i the creditworthiness of
any particular issuer

The Fund's appreach to managig laguidity 15 10 ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficsent liquidity
Iy mel ilu |i:||'.|i|'ilicu '.|-|:||.11. duu. umll:: vk r.u:lrmu.| |up|l lecmq'd 1.'|.||1|.+ili|:|u1.-'|.. willwmil im.'ur.rllpg lmnl;\ouplnme IEIML'H- or
nsking damage to the Finds reputation. Liquidity rnisk s moenitored by the Investment Monager in aceordnnee with
poshicies mnd procedures m plice. The Fund's redemption poliey supulates that unitholders must provide 95 doyvs’
mastice prior o valuation date relevant to the redempiaon date.

Ihe following whle discloses the relevant matunty groupings based on the remmning peniod, at the Statement of
Fminncial Position date (o the contractun] maturty dofe:

Luess than T dlwys to L 12 Maore than

Tin 178 Dolliars T days 1 munih munihs 12 munths  Suspemded
31 December 24023
Contraciual cash InfMows
Financial assets at G value through
prefil or loss - - 6,282 36 - 101 329+
Cash and eash equivalents 133,217 . . . -
Controctual cosh sotflows
Redempiion payable - - [T.358.082) - -
Other payvobles - - {69010 . -

133,217 - (1.144.546) = 10011529

]
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9. Financial risk management {continued)
9.2 Liguidity risk {continued)

*This relates o Monireux Healtheare Fund Lid (“Montreux ). Mentreux bolds an investment i o private healtheare
proveder, the Active Care Growp ("ACGT), throngh os underlying master [und (“Master Fund ™) ACG s the sole
underlying invesiment of Monireux

The Master Fumel provided sotifeation o mvestors dated 3 Oetober 2022, that ACG s a0t i6 8 posithon 10 sijjodt ils
curreni level of mvestment and @ process was initiated o dispose of ACG, The process to dispess ACG commenced
in Otoleer 2022, The direcions of the Master Fund coneluded that, while thie sale is being negatiated, they will not be
in 4 position 1o accumately determine the fur value of ACG for the purposes of scourately processing subscripteons or
redemplions and have accondingly resolved that the Master Fund should enter mie o chse periosl with effect from 3
October 2022 1o allow the sale of ACG to be completed.

According o the notice ssued by Montreux io investors doted | Sepiember 2023, [ollowing ihe closure of the Master
Funel, the directors of Montreus conclinded that Montreus, shoald enter into o clese penod which commeneed on 31
July 2023 w protect mvestor capatal, The closed penod will contmse antil the date on which the sale of the ACG 1=
cither completed of terminated and the Master Fund reopens, The notice furiher stated thit duning the chosed period,
the NAY of Montreux will mot be caleulpted, no wew participaing shares will be availsble for subserptsen oned no
redemption requests will be processed.

9.3 Credif risk

Credhit nisk 15 the sk that the counterparty 10 a fnancisl mstrument will cause a fmancial boss for the Fand by faihng
o dhischarge an obligation. The Fund i3 exposed to the nsk of crechi-related losses thol can oecur as a result of o
counlerparty or issuer being unoble or unwilling to hoour s controetual obbigntions on cosh and cosh equivalents.
The Fund’s policy over credit nisk = 10 painmee its crodit expasane to counterpaacs wath perecived ligher nsk of
defiult by denling only wath counterparties meeting specific credit slandords, Credat nisk 15 momtored by the
Iowvestment Manager in aceordance with policies and procedures in place.

The Fusd®s activitics may give nse (o nsk ot the mme of seitbement of transactions which exposes it w0 the risk of ks
due 1o the Milune of un entidy o lonour its shligations o deliver cash, securities or other assets a5 contraciually agread.
o the mujority of iransactions the Fund mitgates this risk by conducting seitbements theough a beoker thernefore the
risk of default is considered nunimal.

For risk management purposes, the Fund considers and consalidates all elements of eredit risk exposure (such as
mndrvidial defanl nsk, country and seetor nisk). The Fund®s moximom credit sk exposure at the reportimg dite 1=
represented by the respective carrying amaounis of the relevant financial assets in the Statcment of Finnncial Position.

Crdit risk diselosures are segmented into two sections hased on whether the uniderlying financial msinument is subjeet
o LIRS 9% popaiment disclosures or not

Finaneial assets subject to IFRX 95 impatnnent requiirements

The Fumd®s financial assets subjeet o the cxpected eredii loss model within IFRS 9 are cash and cash equivalems. As
al 31 December 2023, no loss allowance has been provided and there were no sipnificant concentrations of credit risk
oy eividua] issuer or growp of isseces e were any linunein] sssets carmed at amoriised cost past duc o ungaired
and o amounts hsve been written ol
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9. Financial risk management fcontinacd)
9.1 Credit risk (continued

Financial assets not subject fo (RN 95 impalrnent reguirements

At 3] December 2023, ihie Fustd i3 exposed to eredin sk on investmeits in Investee Fusids and are not subject o IFRS
Y% pnparment reporements as they are mensired of FVIPL The corying vilue of these sssets, under 1FHS 9
represents the Fund's maximum exposure to eredit risk on financial instruments nod subject to the IFRS 975 impaiment
requirements at the reponting date. Hence, no separale maximum exposige 1o credil nsk disclosre is provided for
these instrumenis

The maximum eredil exposure and counterparty credit ratmgs, as mated by Standand & Poor’s are as follows:

1023
&I Hating Uss
31 December 20023
Cash and casdi L‘:tllihh.'nlix A=l 133217

Naw credit mtings were availoble for investment in Investee Funds, however the Investment Monager is of the epinion
that these Invesiee Fumnds have an acceptable credit qualiiy.

9.4 Caplital risk management

IThe capital of the Fumd 1 represented by the nel assets sttribaable w onitaklers of redeemable unis and shown
the Sustement of Finuneml Positwon. The Fond’s shjective when managung eapatd is (o saleposnd the Fuod®s obility w
conhnie as a gomg concem i order o provide retums for umitholders, provade benefits for otier stakeholders and
muntin & strong capiial base 1o support the develspment of the investment sctivitkes of the Fund,

In order to maintain the capital strocture, the Fumd's policy is to perform the following:

+  Monitor the level of quanierly subseriptions and redempions relative to the assets it expeets 1o be able to lquidate
within the same time period.

s Redeem and sssue new shares i accordance wigh the offening documents of the Fund, which mclude the ability
i restriet redemptions and require certain minimum haldings and subsenptions.

The Trustee and Invesiment Munager monsior capilal on the basis of the value of net sssets attnbutable o unitholders.

9.5 Fair value estimation

;-I.I'J:.l' \'I'.IINI.' MISEE P

The fuar walue of fimsneinl assets amd labalmes traded i active morkess are bised on quotesd market prces o the close
of tradug on the period end date. The Fosd utilises the last mraded market price for both fnancial assets and financial
lindsi lities

An active markel 15 o market m whch irnsacions for te asset or lnbaliy whe place with sulficient fresquency and
wialuine ||l1!L'Llc ptil.'il:lg wlommalion on o lhlgui:ng basis. Investmeits with readily available active ql.l.:llud |!|.Ii.1.‘1::.
or for which fair value can be messared with ssctively quoted prices generally will hinve a higher degree of market
prece observability and a lesser degree of judgenient used in measuring fair value,

The farr valise of finmncial wssets and hobalites that are not insded 1 an active murket s determmed by usaing valuation
techmiques. For instruments for which there 15 oo actrve market, the Fund maoy use imtermally developed models, which
are usually based on valuation methods and techmigues generlly recegmized ox standard within the mdusiry,

Iher output ol 0 model 15 always an estmote or approximatson of 2 value thal cannol be determmed with ceriamty, omd
saluation fechnigues enmployed may nod fully reflect all factors relevant o the positions te Fund holids. Vahabms
are therefore ndjusted. where approprninte. to allew for sddiional factors including model nsk, quadity nsk and
counterpany risk,
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9. Financial risk management {(continued)

9.5 Fair value estimation {(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

IFRS 13 respores enhanced disclosures aboul mvestments that are mensured and reporied @t for waloe. [IFRS 13
establishes o erarchical dechsure frmework which prioniises and ranks the level ofmarket price observibality used
N measuring imvestments af fair vabue. Markel price observability 15 impacted by several factors, including the type of
investneil and the characteristics specific to the investiment

Walamtion of mvestments im Invesiee Funds

Ihe Fund’s mvestments m Invesdee Funds are subyject bo the terms and conditions of the respective Invesiee Fumd's
offening decumentation. The investments in lnvestee Funds are valued based on the latest available redemption price
of such umits for eoch Investee Found, os determimed by the Investee Funds’ admimistrvtors, The Fuasl reviews the
ietanls of the reported infsmmunon obtained from the Investee Funds and considers:

the liquedity of the tnvestee Fund or its underlying mvestments,;

the value date of (he net ssset value (NAV) provided;

any restrictions on redemprions; gnd

the basis of secountmg and, i msanees where the basis of accountmg is other than e valae, fair valunten
mlormation provided by the Invesiee Fund's advisors.

If necessary, the Fund makes adjostments to the NAY of vanous Investee Funds to obtam the best estimate of Gur
warlue Other net changres o Fuir value on fnmci] assets and Guancinl babilises ob foe ealoe threaggh proli or ke m
the Statemient of Comprehensive Income inclhude the change in fair vabue of each Investee Funsd

The fair value of mvesiments in Invesiee Fumds, classificd as financial asseis o fir value through profin o loss, for
which there s not an svailable queted price is bosed on the current net msset value o net ssset value per shore as
reported by thar respeetive sdmunistrators of such s,

Asal 31 December 2023, 140% of Tinmncial psscts al fmg volue taeough profitor less comprse myestments m nvestoe
Funds that kove been fair valued in aceordance with the polscics set out above. The shares of the Investee Funds ane
nist puiblicly tradedd; redemption can only be made by the Fund on the redemgiion dates nmd subject 1o the equired
natice persoads speeified i the offening documents of each of the lwestee Funds. The nghts of the Fund to request
redemption of s investments m Invesiee Funds moy vory i frequency for redempiions, As o resull, the eorrymg
witbues of the Investee Funds may not be indicative of the values oltimmely realissd on redemption. In sddition, the
Func may be materially alfected by the actions of other invesiors who have invested in the Investee Funds m which
the Fund has mvested.

The Investee Funds are not taded on an active market and their G value 15 determined using valeation technigues.
e vahiee 15 primsasily based on the laiest availsble net asset value of the Invesiee Fund us reporied by the adnimistrator
of such Investee Puml.

IFES 13 requires the Fund to classafy for value mensupensents usmg o for valuee loerurchy that reflects the sigmlicance
of the inputs used i making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the illowing levels:

o Level 1 mputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o labilities that the entity ¢an
aceess al the measurement date;

e Level 2 inpuis are mpuis other than quoted prices included within Level 1 ihai are observable for the assct or
habulaty, enther darectly or mdwectly; and

o Level 3 inpuis are unobservable mpuls for the assei or labiliy .
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Financial risk management {continued)

Fair value estimation {continueed)
Fair value measiremont (connnued)

e level m the fmr value bicrarchy withm which the far value measurement 15 cotegorised i s entirety 15 determumed
ot e basis of the lowesi level mput thai i significand to ihe Faer value measurensent in iis eniirely, Far ihas purpose,
the significance of an mpul 15 assessed agamst the fair valoe measurement o is entirety. I o far value measurement
uses abservable inpats deat require signifieant sdjustinent based on unobservable mpiis, that measurement is o Level
3 measurement. Assessing the sigoificance of o particular input o the fur value measuremend 10 iks enbinety Tequines
uslpenent, consider g factors specific to the asset o lability,

e determination of whal constitules ‘ohservable’ requires sigmificant judgement by the Fund. The Vand considers
observable data to be that market daca that 1s readily evaalable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable amd venifiable,
misl proprietnry, supporied by morket tromsactions, and provided by mdepembent sourees that are actively mvalved m
the relevant marker.

The followang table analyses, witlun the Bor vahie hicrarchy the Fuad's fmancial assets messured ot fae value a0 31
Deceniher 2023:

i LN Dellars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tutul

31 December 2023

Finnneial assets at Tair value through profit or loss
Invester Fusds . . 72931875 7,203 875

: - T203ATS 7293878

The lwvestee Funds are nat quated i active markets and were [ar valwed using the net asset value of the Investee Fund,
as reparted by the respective Investee Fund®s mbminsstrator. For these Investee Funds, manngement believes the Fumd
could have redecmed ils imvestment it the net asset value per share at the Statement of Financial Position date.

The investment ¢lassified within Level 3 15 comprsed of a single Investee Fund, whech was i valsed wih reference
10 U net msset value as reporieed by the Tovestee Fumd s sdmimistrator

The Investment Munager regularly reviews Level 3 valuations and considers the appropristeness of the valuntion
madel mputs, ps well as the voluation resull using varsous valuabion methods and techmgques generally recogmsed as
standard wiihin the mdusiry. In seleciing the mosi appropriste valuation model the Investment Manager performs back
testing and consaders which maskel’s resulis hove lnstoneally aligned oot closely 1o actual market ransastions

.'.'r'uu:r'n'rﬂ:r uuu{w.;:. fer .u_glr.!fu'rmi' -.'}N.mp: fir arohservarhle inapiats within Level 3 Ineravefy

The sigmificant unobservable inputs used i the fir valoe measurement categonsed within Level 3 of the Tar value
hierarchy wgether with a quanbitaiive sensitivity analysis as a1 31 December 2023 5 shown below

Fair value ul Unabiservalie Reasvinahile Change in
M December 2023 input possible shift valuntivn
Valuation += Hia
Dieseription technigue {abssolute value)

Investee Fumds USST 293,875 MNetmsset volue  Notapplicable  Notapplicable Mot applicable

24
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the periad from 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of operaifans) fe 31 December 2023

% Financial risk management (continued)
9.5 Fair value estimation {continued)

Valuation technique

The Fand’s Investment Manager considers the valuntion techmigques aml inputs used m waluing thas Investee Fund, 1o
ensite il is reasonable and appropriate and therelore the set asset valie of this Investee Fuind sy be used as an it
mte measurng its fur value, Transactions m the shares of such o fund do not oconr on o regular basis. In measurng
this fair vabue, the net ieset value of the Investee Fund is adjnsted, as necessary, o reflect resinictions on redemplions,
lock up penod, future commitments and other specific factors of the Invesice Fund and ils Investmem Manager.

Valuaiten process

The Trustee hos reviewed the bitest valuntions based on their knowledge of the investment morket. The valuation
wesessmenl was based on pubbe mformation and reflects existing focts and condibons ss of 31 December 2023, The
viluation assessment is also subjeet o quality review procedures performed by ihe Investment Manager. The
Investment Manager venifies the major wputs apphed o the lotest valuatien by sgreemg the information m the
v uation computnion to relevant docuaments od morket infommation

Ihe followmg whle presents the reconsihation of all movements m the T value of kevel 3 mstmanents as ot 31
Drzcember 2023,

I LN Dollars 2023
Opening balunce =3
Purchase of Investee Funds 6,414,213
Nt unrenhsed goins om Gnoncial sssets o1 T value through

profil or kss 479662
Closing balance 7293475

Change m unrealisad gams or losses for Level 3 nsseds held
at year end and inchuded in met unrealised gams on financial
ossets al e valoe throwgh profin or less 479,662

There were no translers between the levels dunng the pened from 16 September 2022 (Date of conumencement of
operationg} o 31 December 2023
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Notes to the Financlal Statements
Sor the period from 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of aperafons) te 31 December 2023

10, Events after reperting date

e mvestor of the Fund hod submateed o (ull redemption resprest i September 2023 and the payment was mude n
Mareh 2024, Investments in Anxa Enhanced Income Fund Offshore Feeder, GSA Coral Portfolie 5.C A SICAV-SIF
Coral Student Portfolie and Prism [ncome Fund were redecmed and the cash proceeds of US86,333 247 were wired 1o
the imwestor smd any resicdual cash will be transferred apon the inalisation of the godit, Investment holdng n Monreox
Healiheare Fundd Lic {*Montreux™) was disinbuted sn-Rand to the Fund s invesior afier the reparting date at o valie of
USSLOT132%,

Subsequent 1o the period end, the Fund is sull open for the new invesiors to invest. However, as of the date of approval
of the nancisl statements, there was o iavestor invested info e Fund,

The Investment Manager conmmits 1o cover all or a-porton of the Fand s operating costs, as mny be neccasary, 1o cnsure
the continuity of the Fund fior the 2024 audit period endding December 2024

No other matenal events have occurred between the reporiing date and the date of spproval of the finaeinl
slatements,

1. Approval of the fMinancial statements

The financial statements were approved and suthorised for issue by the Trustee on 29 August 2024
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2023 12 31

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
9 600 97 600 97
600 97 600 97
11 817,121 131,614 587,043 94,555
16 90,770 14,620 28,523 4,594
907,891 146,234 615,566 99,149
908,491 146,331 616,166 99,246
12 209,625 33,764 126,692 20,406
13 198,009 31,893 65,943 10,621
407,634 65,658 192,635 31,028
500,857 80,673 423,531 68,218
14 140 23 140 23
15 461,860 74,392 461,860 74,392
38,857 6,259 (38,469) (6,196)
500,857 80,673 423,531 68,218

2024 6 28
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2023 12 31
2023 2022
1,338,646 215,616 1,105,430 178,052
247,929 39,934 262,102 42,217
1,586,575 255,550 1,367,532 220,268
377,056 60,732 375,409 60,467
632,193 101,827 604,549 97,375
1,009,249 162,560 979,958 157,842

577,326 92,990 387,574 62,427
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2023 12 31

2022 1 1 140 23 361,860 58,285 (26,043) (4,195) 335,957 54,113
/

- - - - 387,574 62,427 387,574 62,427

10 - - - - (400,000) (64,428)  (400,000) (64,428)

100,000 16,107 100,000 16,107

2023 1 1 140 23 461,860 74,392 (38,469) (6,196) 423,531 68,218
/

- - - - 577,326 92,990 577,326 92,990

10 - - - - (500,000) (80,535)  (500,000) (80,535)

2023 12 31 140 23 461,860 74,392 38,857 6,259 500,857 80,673
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2023 12 31

2023 2022
577,326 92,990 387,574 62,427
(230,078) (37.059) (61,530) (9,911)
82,933 13,358 53,260 8,579
132,066 21,272 21,351 3,439
562,247 90,561 400,655 64,534
(500,000) (80,535) (400,000) (64,428)
(500,000) (80,535) (400,000) (64,428)
62,247 10,026 655 106
28,523 4,594 27,868 4,489
16 90,770 14,620 28,523 4,594
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2023 12 31

2008
11 3 1981
- 2
- 2
; (©)
- 2024 31
- 2023 3 1

(Jewel Box Fund)

(Global

Alternative Strategy Fund)
2023 12 31 2024 3

10 2023 12 31
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ECLs

b)

(i)

(i)
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ECLs

12

12

IFRS 9

ECLs
ECLs

ECLs

30

12

i)
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IFRS
International Accounting Standards Board

IAS 1 IFRS 2

IAS

IFRS IAS

IAS 8

IAS 8
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2023 2022
12,000 12,000
8,826 8,932
143,040 117,459
39,231 7,499
152,466 169,752
52,988 -
94,127 20,000
22,818 18,979
1,937 936
- 49,350
23,814 23,609
78,762 80,029
(175) 1,087
4,800 4,500
6,000
(2,441) 84,417
632,193 604,549

2023 2022
377,056 375,409

4 2022 -4
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2023 12 31

2022 1 1 500
100

2022/2023 12 31 600

100
2 100

100
@

100
©)

100

100

50 2022 40

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

564,996 380,095
100,000 100,000
136,665 103,817

15,460 3,131
817,121 587,043

17
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
209,625 126,692
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
600 600
197,409 65,343
198,009 65,943
17
2023 2022
140 140
1 140
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
461,860 461,860

(GC Agile Intermediate Holdings Limited)
349,960
2022 111,900
2022
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Adgile Intermediate Holdings Limited)

13

2022 12 31

2023 12

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
90,770 28,523
(GC
Genstar GP
2023 1 1 - 2022 1 1 -
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,338,646 1,105,430
247,929 262,102
423,184 419,704
173,895 173,456

31

139/210



19.

ECL

2022

140/210

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IFRS

A 2023 A



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad
19.
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20.

21

2003 Investment Business Act 2003 Bermuda
Monetary Authority B Class B Registered Person 2024 3 6
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DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of financial position
31 December 2023

Hales 31 Dac 31 Dec
2023 2022
usD UsD
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Investmants in subsidiaries 9 60D 800
600 800
Current assels
Trade and cther recelvables 1 BIT121 567,043
Cash and cash equivalents 16 o0,770 28,523
907 891 615,566
Total assets 808 491 616,166
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabiles 12 200,625 126,692
Other financial kabiities 13 198,009 65,843
Tatal liabilities 407 634 192,635
Net assets 500,857 423,531
EQUITY
Share capial 14 140 140
Qther equity 16 461,860 461,880
Retained samingsi{accumataiad Inssas ) 38,857 (3B 4614)
Total equity 500,857 423,531

These financial statements were approved by the beard of divectors, authoriscd for issac
on 28 June 2024 and signed on its behalf by;

Dreu Sy e Ly,
lliam David (i
Williaa avid Wigwin

Director

The nales fa e Fnarcial statemants form an infegral part of these Gnancial slalarments
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DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Lid.

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Yeas ended 31 December 2023

023 2022
Moles usD usD
Revenue 5 1,338 646 1,105,430
Other operating income L] 247,929 G202
1,586,575 1,367 532
Operating expenses

Stafl cosls ] 3TT 056 3Tk 409
Other oparaling expenses. 7 632,193 604,549
Total expenses 1,000,240 orh 958

Profititotal comprehensive
incomefloss for the year 577,326 387 574

Tha noles to the financial statemants form an inlogral part of these financisl stelements.
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DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of changes in equity
Yeas ended 31 December 2023

Retained
Earnings/
Share Other Acumulated
capital equity losses Total
usp usp usp usn
Balance at 1 January 2022 140 361,860 (26,043) 335,957
Profittetal comprahanshve
Incoime for 1he year . . 387,574 387,574
Paymenl of dividend {nole 10) - . {400,000 {400,000)
Addition 1o other equity 100,000 - 100,000
Balance at 1 January 2023 140 461,BE60 (3B 469) 423,51
Profitiotal comprehansive
Income for the year - - 577,326 BYT.326
Payment of dividend (node 10) 2 - (300,000) (500.000)
Balance at 31 December 2023 140 461,860 3B, B5T 500,857

The noles to the fnancial statemants form an inlegral part of these financis! sfatermens.
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2023

023 2022
usD usD
Cash flows fram operating activities
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 577,326 387.5T4
Movemant in brade ard other recaivaliles (230,078) {61.530)
hMowament in trede ard other payables 82,933 53,260
Movemant in other financial liabilities 132,066 21,351
Nel cash fram aperating acthates 562,247 400,655
Cash flows used In financing activities
Diividand paymanis to ordinary shareholdars (500,000) (200,000}
Nel cash used in financing sctivities (500.000) (400.000)
HNet movement in cash and cash
equivalents 62,247 EBEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 28,523 27,668
Cash and cash equivalents al the
end of the yoar [note 18) 90,770 28,623
—_— Eaaa———

The noles fo the financial statemants form an inlegral part of these financial slataments,
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

MNotes to the financial statements
31 December 2023

1.  Generol information

Emerging Asset Management Lid, (the “Company ") was ncorporated in Bermuda on 3 November
2008, The Company was incorpofated under the Bemudian Companics Act 1981,

The Company provides funcd imanigerment services w plaforms o allow emerging Mund managers
tor et started in the industry in o low-cost and low-risk way.

As at the reporting date, the Company acted as investment manager for the following platforms
and Funad:

- Emerging Maonager Platform Limitcd

- Emeerging Munapger Platlform 2 Limited

= Cavman Emerging Manager Platform SPC

- Caymnn Emerging Manager Platform (2} SPC

- Cayman Emerging Manager Platform (3) SPC

« Lawrence Park Credit Strategics Master Fund LLC {ceased operations 31 January 2024)
- Fulminis Emerping Manager Platform SPC {commenced opermtions 01 March 2023)

The Company’s wholly owned subsidinry, EAM (L78A) Lid | acre a5 Admimistrative Manager for
the following phatform.

- Emerging Muanager Platform LLC

In oddition, the Company provides Managemen! Company services io Joewel Box Fund, an
exempled trust governed by the lows of the Cayman Islands and o Global Allernative Strategy
Fundl, an exempied trust governed by the lows of the Cavman Izlands, Jewel Box Fund suspended
operations 31 December 2023 pnd will re-open in te thind quarter of 2024, Global Allemative
Strategy Fund has not ve! commenced operations.

1. DBasis of preparation

These non-statuiory financial sialements represent the separaie non-satuiory financial statements
foor the Company, The dirsctors of the Company have elected nol 1o draw up consolidated finoncial
stateraenits fof the vear ended 31 Decentber 2023 a5 required by Intemational Financial Reporting
Standand 10 - Conselidated Fimancia! Sintements lor its group as the groap®s subssdianes dad not
operase during the year under review and accordingly the group's financial resulis are not
mutenally dillerent lrom those of the Company.

In all respects, these separate non-statutory financial stistements have been prepared m accordance
with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards ond on a historical coat basis. The material
accounting policy information adopled are sel out below,

10
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DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

MNotes to the financial statements
31 December 2023

I Bavi of preparation (continned )
Ulse of extimates and judgements

The prepuration of financial statemonts in conformaty with IFRS« requires management to make
judgements, estimales apd sssumpdions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of asscs, liabilitbes, income and expenses. Actual resulis may differ from these
sslimales.

Estimates aned underlving sssumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions o
accounting estimates are recoynised in the period in which the estimutes are revised and in any
fhture periods affected.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of
prepanng these fmancial stvements are mot difficull io reach, subjective or complex 1o a degree
which would wareant their description as significant and critical in terms of the requirements of
IAS 1 (revised),

3. Material sccounting policy information
Tavestments in subsidiary

A subsiduory 15 an enfity that i controlled by the Company, The Company controls an investee
when the Company is exposed, or has rights, io variable retums from its invelvenent with the
mivesies and has the ability to affect those returns through its pewer over the investee.

Investment in subsidiary 1= accounted for on the basis of the direct equity mberest and 15 staied at
ol less any accumulated impairment osses. Dividends from the investment are recognised in
profit or loss.

Chber fimencinl irsirimenis

Financial asscts and financial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a pany 1o the
coniractual provisions of the instrament.  Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are initially
recogmised it their T value plus directly attribwiable mnsaction costs for all Ononcial asseéts or
financial linbilities not classified o1 fair value through peofit or loss.

Finaveial assets and financial habihties are offset and the net amount presented m the statement
of financinl position when the Compuny has o legnlly enforcenble nght to set ofl the recopnesed
amounts and intends either 1o settle on a net basis or o realise the assel and settle the Nabiliy
simulianconsly.

Financinl assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expine of when the entity ransfers the fnancial wsset and the transfer qualifies for de-

recognition.

Finzncial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. This oceurs when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

An egquity instrumcnd 35 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the msets of the Comipany
ufter deducting all of its habilitves. Equity instruments e recorded at the proceads received, met
of direct 1ssue costs,

11
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DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2023

<8 Maierial sccounting policy information (continued)
Chber fimenctol irsirmenls fcominned)

il Finenvetad assasis

The Company classifies its financial asscts as subsequently measured at amortised cost or
measured at FWTPL on the basis of hoth:

. The entity’s business model for managing the finuncial essets; and
The contraciual cash flow choractenstics of the fEnancial assot.

Consequenily, all recognised financial asseis are subsequently measured in their entivety at either
amortised cost or fair value.

Financial axvers wf oo cosd

A Tmancial osse 15 meosured o1 amormsed cost if 0 15 hebd withm o business medel whaose
objective is to hold financial sssets in order 1o collect contractual cash flows and its contraciual
terms give nse on specilicd dates W cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inderest
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets measured at amortised cost mclude trade
and other recsivables {representing amounis recsivable for transoctions contracied for but not yet
delivered by ihe end of the period) amd cash and eash equivalenis.

An asscasment of business models for managing fimancial nssets s fondamental to the
clessification of a finsneil ssset, The Company determines the business models at a level that
reflects how proups of financial assete are managed together to achieve a pamicular business
ohjective.

For financinl assets at amortised cost, appropriate allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
are recopniced in peofit or less i sccondance with the Company's accounting policy on ECLs.

b Fimaerad Babilittes and equity

{1y Truee wwd other payables

Trade and oaher pavables are classified with current liabilitics and are stated &t their nominal
value.

() Shores issuwed by the Company
Ovidinary shares swed by the Company are classified & equity insrments.

12
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

MNotes to the financial statements
31 December 2023

3. Material nccounting policy informuation (continucd)
Tmprarivment

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for ECLs on the following - financial assets ot
amortisel cost.

Under [IFRS 9, loss allowanées are mmeasured on cither of the following bases:

. I 2-month FCLs: these are ECLs thar result from possible defh evenis within the 12
months afier the reporting date; and

e Lifetrme FCLs: these are FOLs that result from all poessible default events over the
expecied life of a financial instrement.

The Company measures loss allowances ot an smount cqual o lifetime ECLs, excepl for the
following. which are measured as 12-month ECLs

= Financial asscts that are determined to hove o low eredit risk at the reporting date; and

»  (Hher finoncial assets for which credit nsk e, the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financi] instrument) has aot increased significantly sinee initial
recagmition.

A financial instrement i determined to have bow credit risk £ 11 the financial instrument hias a bow
risk of defauly, i) the bomrower has a stropg capacity 1o meet its contractual eash Mow obligations
i the mear tenn and i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
rmay, but will not neceasanly, reduce the ability of the borrower to ful il its contractual cash flow
obligations, The Company considers a financinl asset to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or extenal eredin miting of *invesiment grade’ as per globally understood definitions, To
the extent applicable, the Company has applied the low credit nisk azsumption for the following
¢lizses of finanzial sssets — cash of bank,

When determining whether the cradit pisk of o lnepcin] asset baos ineremsed sigm Geamly since
initial recognition and when esimating ECLs, the Company cormsiders ressonable amd supportsble
imformation that is relevomt and ovai lable withoot undue cost or effort. In this regard, the Company
las an knernal eredit scoring system in place that analyses the credit quality of the counierparies
accordingly. Such credit scoring system takes into consideration both quantitative and qualittive
mformation and analysis, based on the Company’s hastoncal expenience and informed credin
assessment, and also considers the counterpartics” macrosconomic conbext.

The Company has elected the rebuttable presumption from IFRS 9 by assuming that the credit
risk on o financial asset has increased sigrficantly of the Anancinl asset is more than 30 doys past
due.

Morcover, unless the low credit risk assumption is applied, if the counterparty becomes

downgraded by two novches (or more ) based on the credit score assessmen, the Company decms
the financial asset’s credit risk o have increased significantly.

13

149/210



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DocuBSign Ervvelopa ID: DEOSEADL-08E B-442F - SA03-BEIETFCTEanc

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.
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3. Material nccounting policy informuation (continucd)
Tmprarironent feomitnnedd

Moreover, the Campany considers a financial asset to be in default when:

*  The borrower s unlikely o pay its ercdin obligetions w0 e Company in full, withow
recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing secunty (if any is held); or
= The financial asset 15 more than W days past duc.

The muximum period considered when estimated ECLs 15 the maximum contractual peniod over
which the Company 1s exposed to credit sk

A linancial asset 15 oredil-tmpaired when one or meore events that have o detnmentsl impact on
the estimated future cash MNows of that fnoncial assct have sccurrel, Evidence that a fnancial
nsset is credit-impaired includes observable datn obout the following events: significant financinl
difficulty; a breach of contract, such as o defunlt or past due event; the lenden(s) of the bomower,
for economic or contractaal reasons relating (o the borrower’s financial difficulty, having gramted
tov the borrower a concessionish that the lenden(s] would noi ethersase consader; it 15 becoming
probable thal the bormower will enter bunkrupley or other lnancinl reorganisation; or the
disappearince of an setive inarkel for thal financial asset becase af Mnancial dificulties

The Company writes off a finoncial asset when there s information mdicating that the
counterparty 18 in severe financial difficulty and there s no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example when the counterpanty bos been placed under liquidstion or has entered mto bankruptey
proceedings. For financial asscts, the eredit loss is the difference between all contraciual cash
flows that are due fo the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects (o receive, discounted at the onginal effective interest rate. ECLs represent the
weighted woerage of credit losses with the respective risks of a defoult occurring as the weights.

Hevermie recogreition

The Company's revenue streams comprse primanly of invesiment management services 1o
vestment funds The majority of contracts stipulate & mimmmom fixesd fee below o mimmom
assels under management threshold.  Revenue s otherwise based on a basis points calculation
determined by the assets under management.

Revenue is mezsured of the transaction price excluding value added tax and other sales taxes.

The transaction price is allocated to cach performance obligation based on the mdividual selling
price of each performance obligution. Revenue is recognised when the Compuny”s perfonnance
obligutions have been satisfied and the following criteria have been met:

* the parties o the contrme) hirve approved the coniract;

* the Company can identify cach party’s nghts regnrding the services o be tmnsfermed;

+ the Company can identify ihe payment terms for the services to be iransiemesd;

* the contract has commercial substanoe; and

# it is probable that the Company wall colleet the eonsideration for the services imasferred.

1d
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3. Material nccounting policy informuation (continucd)
Revenme recognition goaniinmed}

The Company provides assel management services through contmcts which have an incdefinite
duration,

Such services are recogmised as o performance obligation satisfied over lime as the services are
provided. Although there are certain performance obligations provided “when needed’, the
majority of the work = performed on a regular basig, and there = no breakdown of costs between
performnance obligations.

Hevenue 1 recagmised evenly over the contrmet period (1.¢. on a manthly bisis), as the customer
is deemed (o simultaneously receive and consume the services as they are provided.

Revenue is recogmsed when the Company saiisfics the performance obligation, which s on a
monthly basis,

Tevetiom

Uncler current Bermusda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either
income or capital gains. The Company has received an undenaking from the Minister of Finance
in Bermiuda exempig it from any such taxes of lenst until the peniod 2035, As o result,
management has made no provision for iecome tixes ansing owl of Bemmuda laws in these
finnncial statentents.

The Company accrues corporale income taxes poyable 1o HM Revenue & Customs in the United
Kingdum. The i ponfc income taxes based on the contnbulion 1o income El:ncrn!u.l 1;}'
cmployees of the Company bascd in the United Kingdom. As a result, management has made a
provision for income taxes payvable in the United Kingdom in these financinl statements,

Clherrency iranslation

The financial statements of the Company are presented in its functional currency, the USD, bang
the currency of the primary econemic environment in which the Company operates, Transactions
denominmed in currencies other than the fnctivnal comency ane trmnslted at the exchange rates
ruling on the dote of tromsaction. Monctary assets and labilities denominsted in cumrencies other
than the functional curmrency are re-translated to the functionn] currency at the exchonge rate mling
ot period-end, Exchange differences arising on the settlement and on the re-translation of
mnnetary items are deaft with in the staterment of prolit or loss and other comprehensive meome.

Met fureign exchange puins and losses are clussified with ether operaling expenses.
Clask and cavh equivalents

Cash and eash equiivilents comprise of demand deposita,

Drivisherts

[Divedends 1o hobiders of equity instruments are recognised as habalics in the period in which
they are declered and wre debited directly o equity.

15
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4o, Initial application of International Financial Reporting Standards

The following amendments o the existing stunafards issued by the International Accounting
Starmlants Board are cffective for the current year:

Amendmenis fo AN 1 and IFRS Pracrice Statement 2 - INsclosnre of Accowniing Policies

I'he pmiendinents are intended 1o help prepasers in deciding wheeh accounting policies o dhaclose
in their financial statements. The amendments amend 1A% | in the following woys:

*  Ap entity is now required to disclose its material sccounting policy information instead of
it= significant necounting pelicies;

»  several paragraphs are added to explain how on entity can identify material accounting
policy information and 10 give examples of when accounting policy information is likely
to e muierial;

o the amendments clarfy that sccounting policy information may be material because of its
nture, even if e related apounts are iumaterial;

*  the mnendments elorify that pecounting policy information is material M users of an enfity’s
finnncial sttcments would peed i 1o understand other matenal wformation inthe Gnancial
statementss and

+  the wmendments clorify that if an entity discloses immutenial nccounting policy
information, such information shall not obscure material accounting palicy information.

In mddition, IFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and examiples to
explain and demonstrote the application of the ‘four-step matenality process’ to accounting
policy information in order to support the amendiments to 1AS 1.

Amemdments fo LAY & - Defnttion of Acoounting Exiimates

The amendments are intended to help entities distinguish between secounting policies and
accounting estimates, The changes te IAS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clanfy the
following:

o The definition of a change in acoounting cstimates s replaced wath o definition of
accounting estimotes. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subyect to measurement uncertainty™.

+  [ntities develop accounting estimates if accounting poelicies require ifems in financial
statements o be measured in a way that involves mensurement uncertainty,

- The Huarr] clu:iﬁcs thil a clm.n[:,r_' i I.bD'..'I.Tdnlil.‘lb"_ r::.l.ilnl.l.'l:: that |'|::IJ|.L:. !-lmu i :infumul;ull
or new developments i nat the correction of an error, In sddatson, the effects of a change
i an inputor o measurement technique used to develop am accounting estimate are changes
in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors,

A change in an accounting estimate moy adfect only the curment peried’s profit ar loss, or the
profit of loss of both the cument period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to
thie current period is recognised a8 income or expense in the coment period. The effect, ifany, on
fiurure periods is recognised as inceme or expense in those future periods.

Iai the opinion of monagement, t the adoption of these standards and interprettions o not have a
siggni e impact on the Company s finuncial sislements,
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4. IFRSs in isue bot net el effective

The Compoany has not vet applied any new and revised IFRSs that hove been issued but not vet
effective. These are all applicable for financial periods comamencing on or after | January 2024,

Amendmenis fo FAX T « Classiffeation of iakilities av Current or Non-(Cureent

The amendmems affect only the presentation of labilites in the statement of fnuncial positon
— ot the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liahility income or expenses, or 1he
informetion that entitics disclose about these stems, They:

= clanfy that the classification of Liabilities as current or nen-current should be based on rights
that are in ¢xistence al the end of the repertmg period and align the wording in all affected
paragrapks to refer to the “nght” to defer settlement by ot least twelve months and make
explicit that only rights in place "1 the end of the reporting pertod” should affect the
elussification of a linkility,

# clarify that clnssification 15 unaffected by expectations about whether mn entity will exercise
its nht o defer settlement of a linkility; ond

« ke clear that settlement refers to the transfer 1o the counterparty of cash, oquaty
instruments, other assels or services,

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2024, with carly application permitied, The [ASH has aligned the elfective dote with the 2022
arendients to IAS 1. I an entity applics the 2000 amendinents for an earlier period, it is also
required 1o apply the 2022 amendments carly

5. Revenue

Revenue represents the amount receivable for services rendered during the vear, as follows:

2023 2022

usn usn

Management plattorm fees 1,338,646 1,105 430

6. Oither operating income

2023 2022

usp usD
Funds’ sed-up fees 200,756 240,557
Funds' clasing fees 47,133 20,920
Diresctor sarvices - E25
247 920 262,102
17
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7. (dher operating cxpenses

2023 2022
uso UsD
Auditor's remuneration 12,000 12,000
Bank charges H.826 8,932
Company fees 143 040 11T A58
Fund closing expanses 39,231 7499
Fund set-up expenses 152 466 169, 152
Advsors lees to third parly 52,988 =
Group recharges 94,127 20,000
Healh ingurance 22 818 14,9749
Legal foes 1.937 836
Liability insurance - 49,350
Qe expanses, ncluding rent 231,814 23,609
Professional fees 78,762 80,029
Met foreign exchange (gains)icsses {175) 1.0a7
Tax and other charges 4,800 4,500
Bad debl related 1o fund clasures - 6,000
(Ower eccrealOther operating expanses (2,441) B 417
632,193 504,549
B Stall costs and employes information
2023 2022
uso uso
Stalf cosls:
Wages and salarios and laxes V7056 AThA08

The average nmumber of emplovees inclusive ol executive directons was 4 (2022 - 4)
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9, Financiol nsscts

As al 3] December 2023, the Company carmies ivestments m six entities whose mam prircipal
activity is o serve as o platform that nllows emerging fund monagers to get started in the industry,
The Company alse cames an mvestoient in 15 sole subsidiary, whose principal activity 1s
ivestment and admimistrative management of platforms domiciled inthe US.AL

Investmenis
usn
Carrying amount

AR 01.01.2022 500
Addithons 100
AR 3112 202202023 600

The related entities and subsidury of the Company beld directly were as follows:
Piace of %
Incorporation owmership
Emrging Managar Platform Limited Bermuda 100
Emenging Manager Platform 2 Limiled Bermuda 100
Cayman Emerging Manager Plalform SPC Cayrman lslands 100
Cayman Emarging Manager Piatform (2) SPC Cayman lslanas 100
Cayman Emarging Manager Platform (3) SPC Cayman lslands 100
EAM {USA) Ltd Bermuda 100

1 Dividends

During the reporting period, the Compary paid a dividend of DI5OG (2022 $ISTH00, (KK
s approved by the directors throughout the vear.

1. Trade amil other receivables

31 Doz 31 Do

2023 2022

uso usD

Amounts owed by related paries 564,996 380,095
Amounts owed by shareholder 100,000 100,000
Prepaymenls 136,665 103,817
Dther recaivables 15,460 EREY
LA 587,043

The terms ond conditions of the amounts due to related parics are disclosed in note 17,

18
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12, Trade and other payablcs

31 Dec 31 Dec

2023 2022

uso usD

Trade and other payables 208,625 126,692
Mo ivterest i charged on trade and other pavables.

15, Onher Gnancial Habilicies

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 201

uso usoD

Amounls dus o relalad parties 600 E00

Amounts dus o relaled companias 197,409 645,343

196,009 65,943

The terms andd comditions of the amounts duc 1o related partics ang disclosed innote 1 7,

14.  Share eapital

Ordinary Ordinary

shares shares

2023 2022

usD LsD

O isse 31 December 202231 Decambar 2023 140 140

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the auilvonsed share capital comprised 140
orhnary shares o o par value of LS each. All shares have bean sssued and called up.

15, Other equity

31 Dec 31 Dec

2023 2022

usp usD

Oither equily 461,860 461,860

On 29 Angust 2017, all of the shares of the Company were acquired by its new immediate parent,
GC Agile Intermediate Holdings Limited, which resulied in the unwinding of the amoums
receivitble from the existing preference sharehalders at the time amounting 1o LS03S8, S0,

Other equity amounting to LS 11000 (2022 EDFF 0007 represent copital contribution from
the sharcholders, including an additional contribution of 5 100,000 contributed 1m 2022 fo meet
requircments in Japan for the Company to provide management company services. Such amounts
are unsccured, interesi-free amnd repayable exclusively st the option of the Company.,
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16,

18,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash amd cash equivalents included inthe stitement of cash flows comprise the fllowing amount
in the statement of financial position:

3 Do 31 Dec

2023 2022

usp usD

Cash al bank and on hand 90,770 28,523

Cash at bank eams interest at floating rates based on bank deposit mtes.
Related party disclosures

The Compuny's immediate pareil = GC Agile Intermediote Holdmgs Limited and its ultimnte
parent is Cienstar GF,

Amounts owed to related partics as disclosed in note 13, include amounts due to the underiyving
platforms under management and amoans due 1o related companies for intercompany recharges,

During the course of the vear. the Company emered into iransactions with related partics s
filbows:

1 dan 3 to 1 Jan £2 to
31 Dec 23 31 D 22
uso ush
Revenue:
Retaled party ransaclions with:
Platforms under managamant 1,338,646 1,105,430
= ———3
Other operaling income:
Related party lransactions with;
Platiorms unde: managemant 247 020 262,102
Other operaling expenses and sfaff costa:
Redated parly transactions with;
Related companias 423,184 419,704
Platloemms undes manogemenl 173,885 175458

Fair values of financial asscts and Tnancial linbilities

Al 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the corrying amounds of finuncial essels and
fimengial lubilitics classafics with current assets and curent babilities respectively approsimastod
their fair values due 1o the short-term maturities of thess assces and linbilities,

21
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19, Financiol risk management

The exposures to nisk and the way nsks anse, together with the Company®s objectives, policies
and processes for managing and mexsuring these risks are disclosed in more detail below.

The objectives, policics and processes for menaging fnaneiul risks and the methads used w
measure sich risks are subject to continual improvement and development.

Where applicable, any significant changes in the Company’s exposure (o financial risks or the
manner in which the Company monages and memsunes these nsks are discloscd below,

Where possible, the Company aims to reduce and contrel risk concentrations. Concentrations of
linmmcianl nsk anse when linancisl instruments with similur chamclensoes are miluvenced in the
same way by chinges m economic or ather factors. The amount of the msk exposure associsted
with financial instruments shanng similar characlenstics is disclosed in more detail in the noles
1o the finzncial statements.

T

Financinl assets which potentially subject the Company 1o concentrations of credil nsk consist
principally of receivables and cash ot bank.

Receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubiful debis. As disclosed in the materinl
secounting poley miemation, in terms of [FRS 9, the Company applies in ECL model. Credit
risk with respect 1o receivables 15 limited due 1o credit contmol procedures. Due fo the noture of
thie besiness awl resulting rade receivable halances ansing. eredin risk with respect to receivables
s monitored on an engeing basis,

The carrying amoami of tmde receivahles recorded in the financial statements, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Company's trade receivables that are considered 1o be past due
for which the Company has not provided as the amounts are still considered recoverable.

The Company assesses the credit quality of its customers by taking into account their financial
standing and past expenience, During the vear no allowance for doubaful debts has been recognised
ngainst trode reccivables (2022 — USDIMIL).

Cash at bank is placed with Northern Trust International Banking Corporation. This financial
Imstinution has & credit mting of A+ (2023: A+) by Stendard and Poor’s.

Cwrrency risk

Foreign cumency tmnsactions comprise mainly of transactions in EUR and GBP. The rsk ansing
from foreign currency transactions i< managed by regular momitoring of the relevant exchange
rates and management’s reaction to materinl movements thereto, Currency nisk is not considered
to e sagnificant ai the date of the financial position.

Tnterest malfe Ak
Intercst rate misk is the nsk associsted to fluctustions in the mie of mierest 1n relation to mterest
beaning financial assets and liabilitics held by the Company. Bank halances represent shori term

bolances held caming interest al the current market rates, where the directors believe that the
Company*s exposure 1o inlerest rle risk is not significant,
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19, Financiol risk mansgement (continacd
Lignnielity risk

The Company monitors and manages its sk 10 a shonage of fumds by monitonng forecast and
nctual cash lows. Liguidity risk is not considencd to be significont ot the dote of financial position.

Capital Fisk managemient
The Company's objectives when managing capital arc 10 safepuard its ability 1o continue a5 a

going concern ond o maximise the retumn 1o stakeholders through the eptimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital strecture of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in pote
16 and items presented within equaty in the statement of financial position.

The Company's directors manage the Company s capital structure and make adjustments woit, in
the light of changes in economic condittons or relevant legislotion, The capital structure 15
reviewed on on engoing basis

. Guarantee
In comnection with a credit facility entered by the Company’s indireet parent within e Apex
Group dunng the previows peniods, all of the Company’s assets have been pledged in favour of
the Apex Group’s lenders.

. Evemis afier the reporting date
As a result of changes to the Investment Business Act 2003, as amended, the Company applicd to

become o Class B Registered Person with the Bermuda Monetary Authonty.  The Company
reccived confirmation of its appointment & March 2024,
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Apex Fund Services (Cayman)
Ltd.

2024 100 16,107

2010 9 8
CIMA

TORANOTEC Asset Management Ltd.)

2024

1998 31 2016
12
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Independent auditor's report

To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box Fund

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of our
report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Jewel Box Fund (the Fund) as at
31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from 16 September 2022
(date of commencement of operations) to 31 December 2023 in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Fund's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the statement of comprehensive income for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of
operations) to 31 December 2023;

the statement of changes in equity for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of
operations) to 31 December 2023;

the statement of cash flows for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of operations)
to 31 December 2023; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Basis for qualified opinion

As at 31 December 2023, the Fund held an investment in Montreux Healthcare Fund Ltd (“Montreux”), with a
carrying value of US$1,011,329, which represented 13.62% of the total assets of the Fund. As stated in Note 9.2,
Montreux, through its underlying master fund (the “Master Fund”), held a single investment in a private healthcare
provider, the Active Care Group (“ACG”"). During the period, the Master Fund initiated a process to dispose of ACG
and the directors of Montreux closed Montreux to subscriptions and redemptions and ceased to calculate the NAV
of Montreux. Due to the illiquid nature of Montreux and the lack of relevant financial information for ACG, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the carrying value of Montreux as at 31 December
2023. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary with respect to the
carrying value of Montreux as at 31 December 2023, and the related net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, and the
statement of cash flows for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of operations) to 31
December 2023.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ('ISAs'). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box Fund

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Fund'’s internal control.

203/210



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor's report (continued)
To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box Fund

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in
its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

29 August 2024
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Emerging Asset Management Ltd. (“the Company”), set out on
pages 6 to 23, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
/nternationa/ Cade of Ethics for Professional Accountants including International Independence Standards (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Malta, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and the Auditor's Report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Company’s information, the
directors’ report and the statement of directors’ responsibilities, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin
this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 5, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The scope of our audit does not include assurance on the future viability of the Company or on the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the directors have conducted or will conduct the affairs of the Company. The financial position of
the Company may improve, deteriorate, or otherwise be subject to change as a consequence of decisions taken, or to be
taken, by the management thereof, or may be impacted by events occurring after the date of this opinion, including, but
not limited to, events of force majeure.

As such, our audit report on the Company’s historical non-statutory financial statements is not intended to facilitate or
enable, nor is it suitable for, reliance by any person, in the creation of any projections or predictions, with respect to the
future financial health and viability of the Company, and cannot therefore be utilised or relied upon for the purpose of
decisions regarding investment in, or otherwise dealing with (including but not limited to the extension of credit), the
Company. Any decision-making in this respect should be formulated on the basis of a separate analysis, specifically
intended to evaluate the prospects of the Company and to identify any facts or circumstances that may be materially
relevant thereto.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, in terms of generally accepted auditing standards, the absence of
any reference to a material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in our auditor's
report should not be viewed as a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

For the avoidance of doubt, any conclusions concerning the adequacy of the capital structure of the Company, including
the formulation of a view as to the manner in which financial risk is distributed between shareholders and/or creditors
cannot be reached on the basis of these financial statements alone and must necessarily be based on a broader analysis
supported by additional information.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The audit report was drawn up on 28 June 2024 and signed by:
Mark Giorgio as Director

in the name and on behalf of

Deloitte Audit Limited

Registered auditor

Central Business District, Birkirkara, Malta

)
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